
 

 
 

 
Oaklands Road  
Haywards Heath  
West Sussex  
RH16 1SS 

 
Switchboard:  01444 458166 

 
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 

www.midsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Working together for a better Mid Sussex 

 
 

8 November 2019 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at these offices on MONDAY, 

18TH NOVEMBER, 2019 at 4.00 pm when your attendance is requested. 

 
Yours sincerely, 

KATHRYN HALL 

Chief Executive 

 

A G E N D A 
 

  Pages 
 

1.   To receive Declarations of Interest from Members in respect of any 
matter on the Agenda. 
 

 

2.   To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

3.   To confirm Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 October 2019. 
 

3 - 6 

4.   To consider any items that the Leader agrees to take as urgent 
business. 
 

 

5.   Ansty Village Centre Trust. 
 

7 - 12 

6.   Budget Management 2019/20 - Half Year Progress Report. 
 

13 - 26 

7.   Regeneration of The Orchards Shopping Centre. 
 

27 - 36 

 
 
To: Members of Cabinet: Councillors J Ash-Edwards (Chair), J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair), 

J Belsey, R de Mierre, S Hillier, A MacNaughton and N Webster 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet 
held on Monday, 14th October, 2019 

from 4.00 pm - 4.21 pm 
 
 

Present: J Ash-Edwards (Chair) 
J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair) 

 
 

J Belsey 
R de Mierre 
 

S Hillier 
A MacNaughton 
 

N Webster 
 

 
  
 
Also Present: Councillors P Chapman, R Clarke and I Gibson 

Kathryn Hall, Chief Executive; Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief 
Executive; Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services; Peter 
Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources; Simon Hughes, Head of 
Digital and HR; Terry Stanley, Business Unit Leader  for 
Democratic Services and Alison Hammond,  Democratic 
Services Officer. 

 
 
 

1. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF 
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.  
 
None. 
 

2. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
None as all Members were present. 
 

3. TO CONFIRM MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 SEPTEMBER 2019.  
 
The Minutes of Meeting of the Cabinet held on 16 September 2019 were approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

4. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE LEADER AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT 
BUSINESS.  
 
None. 
 

5. LAND AT HURST FARM, HURSTWOOD LANE, HAYWARDS HEATH  
 
Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report and advised 
Cabinet that Hurst Farm had been bought by the Council in the 1990s.  He noted that 
Haywards Heath has grown and the Council have been working to market the land 
for residential developments as it forms part of the Council’s five year housing land 
supply.  The report before Cabinet is to recommend that the land is sold to a 
developer for a residential development which is detailed in the Exempt report as the 
information is highly commercially confidential. 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

 
Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services highlighted that the land had been 
advertised as open space land and no objections had been received.  
 
The Leader noted that the Cabinet were sitting as the land owner. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Community noted that the report highlighted the longer term 
strategic aims of the Council. The land had been purchased by the Council and was 
included in the Neighbourhood Plan. He confirmed that receiving no objections to the 
advertisement was significant. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth agreed with the comments made by 
Cabinet Member for Community and asked for assurance that the development 
would be carried out in professional way and to a high standard which would benefit 
the town. 
 
The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed that this was a planning matter and 
they had done as much as possible to secure the best outcome for the Council. 
 
The Leader confirmed that this was a good example of partnership working with the 
Town and County Council as the development would have many public benefits, 
including a school, cemetery, park, allotments and open space. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning noted that the development would 
provide a development with public access to open space which will be a benefit to 
the community. 
 
The Head of Regulatory Services advised that the Section 106 agreement will be a 
standard agreement and will comply with policy requirements and regulations. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Customer Services noted that the sale of the land would 
safeguard the financial future of the Council for the benefit of the residents of Mid 
Sussex. 
 

6. TO CONSIDER WHETHER TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC FROM THE 
MEETING DURING CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEM IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
ON THE GROUNDS THAT IT INVOLVES THE LIKELY DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT 
INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A 
OF THE SAID ACT.  
 
 
The Leader proposed that the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the exempt appendix on the agenda and this was seconded by The 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning and unanimously agreed. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item in accordance with Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 
 
 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 4



 
 

 
 

LAND AT HURST FARM, HURSTWOOD LANE, HAYWARDS HEATH 
 
The Leader returned to the open session of the meeting and proposed the motion 
which was seconded by the Cabinet Member for Housing Planning and unanimously 
agreed.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
Cabinet recommended to: 
 
(a) note that there were no responses to the statutory advertisements placed in the 
Mid Sussex Times on 29th August and 5th September 2019 giving notice of the 
Council’s intention to dispose of the Development Land edged in red on the plan 
attached at Appendix D; and 
 
(b) authorise the Head of Corporate Resources and the Solicitor and Head of 
Regulatory Services to dispose of the Development Land to the Council’s preferred 
developer on the basis set out in the Exempt Appendix E to this report, tabled at the 
meeting, and on such other terms as the Solicitor and Head of Regulatory Services 
recommends to protect the Council’s interests. 
 

7. EXEMPT REPORT  
 

8. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10 DUE NOTICE OF 
WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.  
 
None. 
 

 
 
 

The meeting finished at 4.21 pm 
 

Chairman 
 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 5



This page is intentionally left blank



ANSTY VILLAGE CENTRE TRUST 

Purpose of Report 

1. To seek approval for a number of proposals in relation to the development of a new 
combined Village Hall, Sports Pavilion and Social Club at the Council’s Ansty Recreation 
Ground, including the allocation of £100k of general reserve to the Scheme.   

 
2. Decisions are needed at this time due to planning and funding deadlines that require the 

project to commence on site by January 2020. 
 

Summary 
 

3. The report provides some project history, information regarding the current budget, 
funding available and financial shortfall; and details of the various lease arrangements 
needed to enable project delivery.   

 
Recommendations  

 
4. Cabinet are recommended to agree to: 

 
(i) grant £100,000 to the Ansty Village Centre Trust funded through Reserves;  

 
(ii) take a 150 year lease of the existing village hall site from the Ansty Village Hall Trust 

for the purposes of using the land as a car park serving the Recreation Ground 
 
(iii) grant a 150 year lease of the site of the new Village Hall, Sports Pavilion and Social 

Club and Car Park (including the site of the existing village hall) to Ansty Village 
Centre Trust at a peppercorn rent for the purposes of using the land as a Village Hall, 
Sports Pavilion and Social Club with ancillary Recreation Ground Car Parking 
following practical completion of the Scheme.   

 
(i) grant a 28 year lease of the groundsman’s store at Ansty Recreation Ground to Ansty 

Cricket Club together with ancillary rights to maintain the cricket wicket on the 
Recreation Ground and use of the cricket outfield  

 
(ii) take a surrender of and re-grant a lease with an amended route to Ansty Cricket 

Club’s to give them access rights over the Recreation Ground to the Club’s extension 
to the north of the Recreation Ground  

 

Background 

5. The Council owns Ansty Recreation Ground at Deaks Lane, Ansty. The Trustees of the 
Ansty Village Hall Trust own Ansty Village Hall, which is a dilapidated village hall adjacent 
to the Council’s Recreation Ground.   

REPORT OF: HEAD OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
Contact Officer: Elaine Clarke, Community Facilities Project Officer 

Email: elaine.clarke@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477275 
Wards Affected: Cuckfield  
Key Decision: No 
Report to: Cabinet  
 18 November 2019 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:elaine.clarke@midsussex.gov.uk


 
6. Ansty Cricket Club play cricket at the Recreation Ground and maintain a cricket square 

and practice nets under a licence from the Council.  Ansty Sports and Social Club, of 
which the Ansty Cricket Club forms part, operates from Ansty Village Hall where they 
have a bar and social area, and sports changing rooms. 
 

7. The Ansty Village Centre Trust (AVCT) is a Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO) 
set up by the partner organisations Ansty & Staplefield Parish Council, Ansty Village Hall 
Trust (AVHT), Ansty Sports & Social Club and Ansty Cricket Club to enable them to work 
together to deliver a new combined sports and community centre.   

 
8. AVHT was awarded a Facility Grant of £17,440 in 2009 towards the costs of re-providing 

the Village Hall.  AVCT was awarded a Facility Grant of £127,000 toward the project on 
30 May 2013 (£16,959 ring-fenced for Stage 2) and a further £214,402 on 29 October 
2019, funded through the release S106 contributions. 

 
9. The AVCT has planning approval (Ref: DM/16/4609) to demolish the existing village hall 

and the construct a new Village Hall, Sports Pavilion and Social Club at the Council’s 
Ansty Recreation Ground with the existing site of the old village hall becoming an 
extension to the existing car park at the Recreation Ground, increasing the number of 
spaces from 22 to 43, including 3 disabled bays.   

 
10. The facilities in the new Ansty Village Centre (Stage 1) will replace the existing building, 

expand the car park and provide locally managed ancillary sports facilities for users of the 
public recreation ground:  

 

 a new 120m 2 village hall (compared with 78m 2  at present) with a dedicated 
catering standard kitchen and improved storage;  

 a new 120m 2 club and function room, (compared with 42 m 2  at present) with a 
small kitchen and bar which will provide refreshment and catering for users of the 
Centre and the recreation ground;  

 four team and two officials changing rooms to Sport England specification (20m 2 
area for team changing), to replace the two existing changing rooms which fall well 
short of the required standards ( only  12m 2 for team changing);  

 a snooker room of 60m 2 , a reduction on the current 80 m 2 , but meeting the 
minimum recommended standard for two tables of 55m 2;  

 a meeting room of 24m 2 (currently 17m 2 ) separated from the snooker room by a 
partition, which can be moved to create a space for spectator viewing when snooker 
tournaments  are hosted; and  

 disabled access throughout the building, including  lift  access to the first floor. 
 

11. Based on recent analysis, the existing building and adjoining recreation ground currently 
attract approximately 15,000 visits a year with approximately 500 people using the 
facilities regularly, including up to 300 sporting users (darts, snooker, football, stoolball 
and cricket).  This presents a strong foundation for growth and the new facilities are 
expected to double usage within three years by recruiting new members and opening 
longer hours to cater for more hires and social functions. The new facility will double the 
changing room capacity which will allow the cricket club to fully realise the potential of the 
second cricket ground by playing more matches at Ansty and developing as a centre of 
regional excellence, particularly for women and girls cricket.   
 

12. The total project cost is estimated at £1,417,410 and the work has been broken down into 
three stages as follows:  
 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 8



  Stage 1: 
Building                                                                                                                                                                                                             
 
Jan – Oct  2020  

Stage 2: 
Demolition & 
Car Park                                
Nov-Dec  2021   

Stage 3: Store                                       
 
 
2021  

 £’s £’s £’s 

Project Costs 1,072,964  107,000  84,656  

Professional fees 80,673  -    -    

Contingency 52,903  14,759  4,455  

Totals 1,206,540  121,759  89,111  

 
13. To date, the partners have secured funding from the following sources toward Stage 1 of 

the project, this leaves a shortfall of £100,000:  
 

 £’s 

AVCT - fundraising 8,130  

AVHT - fundraising 76,600  

Ansty Sports & Social Club 55,000  

Ansty Cricket Club 80,000  

Ernest Kleinwort 70,000  

England & Wales Cricket Trust 50,000  

Sport England 75,000  

England and Wales Cricket Board 150,000  

Business funders 25,000  

LEADER Fund  74,927  

Ansty & Staplefield Parish Council 100,000  

MSDC release of S106 contributions 324,443  

MSDC Facility Grant 17,440  

TOTAL 1,106,540  

 
14. It should be noted that Stage 2 funding for the car park is expected to come from future 

s106 contributions due in respect of the South of Rocky Lane and Rookery Farm 
developments, which are both underway.  The Planning decision notice requires the 
AVCT to demolish the village hall within one month of completion and does not allow use 
of the car park until it has been surfaced.  Stage 3 to refurbish the store, will be funded 
through s106 contribution due from the Land South of Bolney Road and Rookery Farm 
developments.  These funds are allocated to this project and will need to be secured 
through the further release of S106 contributions when they are received by the Council.  

 
15. To fulfil the terms of the LEADER Fund, work on Stage 1 needs to start on site in early 

January 2020.  Other funders have also placed restrictions on their awards, the s106 is 
time limited and the Planning permission expires 13 January 2020.  For these reasons, it 
is imperative that the project is fully funded with signed grant and lease agreements in 
place that enable the AVCT to start work early in the New Year.    

 
16. The Ansty Cricket Club lease an area of land to the north of the Recreation Ground and 

gain access to that land via the Recreation Ground under the terms of a lease of rights.  
The route of the right of way granted by that lease will need to be diverted and it is 
proposed that this is done by way of a surrender of the existing lease and the grant of a 
new lease for the residue of the term of the existing lease of the revised route.  The 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 9



Cricket Club requires a lease of the groundsman’s store and use of the cricket wicket to 
give them security of tenure to be eligible for ECB funding.   

 
17. It is therefore proposed that the Council enters into lease agreements with the AVHT, 

AVCT and ACC and provides an additional award of £100,000 to be funded through 
Reserves to match fund the Parish Council’s contribution, to cover the budget shortfall 
and enable project delivery.   

 
Powers and Legal Advice  

 
18. Local authorities are given powers under Section 120 of the Local Government Act 1972 

(“the 1972 Act”) to acquire land for the purposes of any of their functions or the benefit, 
improvement or development of their area.   The Council is empowered under the Public 
Health Act 1875 and the Open Spaces Act 1906 to acquire land for the purposes of 
providing or improving public parks and pleasure grounds, which includes a recreation 
ground. The Council is therefore, empowered to acquire a leasehold interest in the 
existing village hall site for the purposes of providing an extension to the existing 
Recreation Ground Car Park. 
 

19. Local authorities are given powers under Section 123(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to dispose of land in accordance with Section 123.  The only constraint is that 
disposal must be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable (except in the case of 
short tenancies of less than 7 years), unless the Secretary of State consents to the 
disposal.  An exception to this is where the authority considers it will help secure the 
promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of an area 
and the difference between the unrestricted value and the consideration accepted ("the 
undervalue") is £2,000,000 (two million pounds) or less.  

 
20. To demonstrate that the Council is adhering to these terms Estates & Facilities has 

commissioned a valuation to establish the unrestricted values of the various property 
interests to ensure they are below the threshold. It is considered that the provision of a 
community facility for the benefit of the local community will help to promote the 
economic and social well-being of the area and it is also considered that the provision of 
a groundman’s store and the re-grant of the lease of rights will contribute towards the 
playing of cricket at the site, healthy lifestyles and the social well-being of the area.   

 
21. The 1972 Act also provides that the Council cannot dispose of land consisting of or 

forming part of an area of open space unless, prior to making the decision to grant the 
leases, the Council advertises its intention to do so for two consecutive weeks in a local 
newspaper circulating in the area in which the land is situated and invites members of the 
public who may oppose or object to such a disposal to make their views known and for 
the Council to consider such objections before deciding whether or not to grant the 
proposed leases.  

 
22. The Ansty Recreation Ground constitutes public open space and the District Council is 

therefore, required to comply with Section 123(2)(A) of the 1972 Act. On 17 and 24 
October 2019 the Council advertised the proposed leases of parts of the Ansty 
Recreation Ground and invited members of the public who might object to the proposed 
leases to make their views known to the District Council by 14 November 2019. As the 
deadline for objections falls after the date of publication of this report, a separate report 
on any objections received will be tabled at Cabinet.   

 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 10



Policy Context 

23. The Council has had a long standing policy of leasing facilities and providing capital funds 
through the S106 mechanism and community grants to sports club and community 
organisations.  This enables communities to provide space for the uses and needs of the 
local residents.  Recommendations contained within this report are consistent with that 
long standing policy.  
 

24. The Council first agreed to grant fund this project in 2009 and has been supportive of the 
development for a number of years.  The scheme is identified as a high priority in the 
2015 to 2031 Playing Pitch Strategy and a more recent draft which is endorsed by Sport 
England and the National Governing Bodies of cricket and football which are both played 
at this site.     

 
25. The Council is developing a Community Buildings Study to map existing provision and 

assess future needs resulting from new housing and population growth across the 
District. This facility will retain and improve current facilities.   

 
Financial Implications 

 
26. The tenants will be required to reimburse the Section 123 advertising costs.  

 
27. This proposal requires the Council to increase the existing award by a further £100,000, 

to be funded from general reserve.  
 

Risk Management Implications 
 

28. If the Council cannot provide security of tenure or the additional funds needed to deliver 
Stage 1 the AVCT will not be able to commence on site in January 2020.  In this instance, 
there is a risk the LEADER Fund grant offer and other funding will be withdrawn and the 
planning permission will expire.  
 

29. If the additional development contributions needed to fund Stage 2 of the project are not 
received by Autumn 2021 then work to complete the car park could be delayed.  

 
Equality and Customer Service Implications  

 
30. None 

 
Background Papers 
 

 Funding applications and associated documentation. 

 Heads of Terms 
 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 11



This page is intentionally left blank



BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2019/20 – HALF YEAR PROGRESS REPORT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Purpose of Report 

1. This report reviews the progress on the Revenue Budget, Capital Programme and 
Treasury Management for 2019/20. 

Summary 

2. The forecast revenue outturn position for 2019/20 at the end of September is showing 
a projected net underspend of £43,000 against the original estimate, after transfers 
totalling £457,000 to Specific Reserve, as approved by Council on 25 September 2019. 
This underspend mainly relates to additional income for Development Management 
Fees, Garden Waste as well as salary savings, mainly offset by pressures in 
Temporary Accommodation, Building Control fee income and Town Centre 
supplementary rents. 

Recommendations  

3. To recommend to Council for approval: 

(i) that £75,000 be transferred to Specific Reserve from General Reserve to 
cover the cost of Gatwick Studies as detailed in paragraph 21 

(ii) that £90,000 One Public Estate government grant income in respect of 
Burgess Hill Station Quarter Project be transferred to Specific Reserve 
as detailed in paragraph 22; 

(iii) that £17,484 grant income relating to Local Authority EU Exit preparation 
Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 23; 

(iv) that £24,737 grant income relating to Individual Electoral registration 
(IER) in 2019/20 be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in 
paragraph 24; 

(v) that £9,225 grant income relating to new Burdens Business Rates be 
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 25;  

(vi) that ££68,762 to meet the costs arising from St. Francis, Haywards heath 
– Anscombe Wood Regeneration be transferred to Specific Reserve as 
detailed in paragraph 26; 

(vii) the variations to the Capital Programme contained in paragraph 36 in 
accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure rule B3. 

To note: 

(viii) the remainder of the report; 

REPORT OF: Head of Corporate Resources 
Contact Officer: Cathy Craigen, Business Unit Leader for Finance 

Email: Cathy.craigen@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477384 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision: No 
Report to: Cabinet 
 18th November 2019 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Cathy.craigen@midsussex.gov.uk


 

REVENUE SPENDING 

Position to the end of September 2019 

4. This is the third budget management report for the current financial year.  This is 
intended to inform Members how key income and expenditure targets are performing 
after the first half of 2019/20, and to give an indication of the likely position at the end of 
the year.  

 
Expenditure and Income to date 

5. Table 1 details ’actuals’ to date for the key income categories and salaries expenditure, 
compared to their profiled budgets.  It gives a snapshot position on performance to the 
end of September only.  This table also details the projected year-end position for 
these key income categories, but this only forms part of the consideration for the year-
end predictions for the Council’s overall revenue budget.   

+++ 

Table 1: Key income/expenditure to the end of September 2019 

 INCOME    2019/20   Profiled   2019/20 
Pressure/ 
(Saving)  

Pressure/ 
(Saving) Projected 

    Actual to   2019/20   Original To end  To end Year-end 

    September   Budget   Budget September  July Variance 

    £’000   £’000   £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 

  
     

 
  

 
   0 

Car Park Charges     (1,118)   (1,030)   (2,085) (88)  (76) (75) 

Development Management 
Fees  

  
(884) 

  
(727) 

  
 (1,454) (157) 

 
(43) (157) 

Building Control Fees    (240)   (315)   (549) 75  50 69 

Land Charges    (94)   (82)   (153) (12)  (3) (13) 

Licensing Act Fees    (49)   (23)   (144) (26)  (14) 0 

Hackney Carriage Fees    (64)   (64)   (129) (0)  (4) (10) 

Outdoor Facilities Income    (130)    (209)   (280) 79  (15) 0 

Garden Waste    (769)   (680)   (1,281) (89)  (89) (45) 

Leisure Contract Income    (711)   (717)   (1,433) 6  8 0 

Industrial Estates Rents/  
Depot Rents  

  
(836) 

  
(543) 

  
(1,050) (293) 

 
(336) (317) 

Town Centre Rents    (1,286)   (1,270)   (2,540) (16)  25 64 

General/Miscellaneous 
Property   

  
(167) 

  
(109) 

  
(210) (58) 

 
(48) (56) 

  

  

 

  

 

  

  
 

  

  

  

 

  

 

  

  
 

  

Total Income    (6,348)   (5,769)   (11,308) (579)  (545) (540) 

  

  

 

  

 

  

  
 

 
 

  

  

 

  

 

  

  
   

EXPENDITURE             
 

 

Staffing costs    6,309   5,934   11,868 375       109 (79) 

  

  

           
               

 
  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 14



6. Car parking income is above budget by £88,000 in the first six months operation of the 
service although when compared to last year income levels are broadly the same.  This 
is detailed in Table 2 below.  This includes variations in respect of higher than 
budgeted Season Tickets £10,000, as well as additional Pay and Display Income 
(£78,000). The forecast was previously amended to recognise the over achievement of 
income at outturn 2018/19, whilst at the same time including a conservative forecast of 
increased income for the current year of £75,000. This end of year forecast remains 
unchanged. 

 
 

Table 2: Car Parking Income variance 

     
 Actual 

April to  
September 

 

Outturn 
2018/19 

 

Forecast 
2019/20 

 

 (Over)/ under 
target 

(Over)/ under 
target 

(Over)/ under 
target 

 

 £’000 £’000 £’000  
     

Pay & Display tickets (78) (133) (75)  

Season Tickets (10) 2 0  

     
Total additional income (88) (131) (75)  
     
     

 

7. At the end of September, additional Planning Application fee income of £157,000 is 
showing. This is due to some large applications received in August and September.  
Due to continuing uncertainty in the housing market, the full year forecast has been 
amended to include the additional income to date, but includes no further increase for 
the remainder of the year.  This will be kept under review as the year progresses. 

8. At the end of September, Building Control Income is under target by £75,000.  Due to 
system issues, income to the value of £6,000 could not be raised in September and 
was delayed until October, which will reduce the shortfall to date to £69,000. The Head 
of Service for Building Control has confirmed that a fee increase is expected to reduce 
any ongoing shortfalls from 1st December 2019. In addition, Approved Inspectors 
providing Building control services have reduced in the Market as a result of a change 
in insurance practices. This is likely to result in work being redirected to the Council.  
However, it is not expected that the shortfall to date can be recovered and the 
projection has therefore been amended to reflect this £69,000 shortfall, an additional 
£40,000 since previously reporting, which is also showing in Appendix A of this report. 

9. At the end of September Land Charges income is above budget by £12,000.  A 
variation of £13,000 is projected for the full year. The full year projection has been 
amended to reflect this which is showing in Appendix A of this report.  

10. Licencing income is £26,000 above target for April to September.  This is mainly due to 
the profiling of income, which can fluctuate. Therefore, the forecast remains 
unchanged. 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 15



11. Hackney Carriage Fees are showing no variation to budget for the first six months of 
this financial year.  The forecast was previously amended to reflect additional income 
identified at outturn 2018/19 of £10,000, resulting from an increase in the number of 
Taxi licence applications. No change to the full year forecast is anticipated at this 
stage. 

12. Outdoor facilities income is £79,000 below budget after the first six months of the year.  
This is mainly due to income being invoiced later than profile.  However, no variation to 
the full year projection is anticipated at this stage. 

13. Based on the current budget profile, Garden Waste income is £89,000 above target at 
the end of September. However, this is partly due to the profiling of income which can 
fluctuate. A project to expand the Garden Waste service to deliver an additional 1800 
customers in 2018/19, has unexpectedly already been achieved. The forecast has 
therefore been amended to reflect anticipated additional income of £45,000 by year-
end, which is reflected in Appendix A of this report.  A business case to support further 
expansion of the service is being prepared. 

14. The value of the Leisure Contract income this year has recently been agreed with 
Places for People Leisure, and there is no forecast change to the full year budget. 

15. Industrial Estates rent / Depot Rents are £293,000 above the target at the end of 
September.  As reported in May this includes unbudgeted rental income of £317,000 
following the acquisition of 208-216 London Road, Burgess Hill. 

16. Town Centre rent is £16,000 above the target at the end of September.  However it is 
anticipated that there will be a pressure of £64,000 for the supplementary rent at the 
Martlets Shopping Centre.  The full year projection has been amended to reflect this 
which is showing in Appendix A of this report. 

17. General/miscellaneous property income is £58,000 above the target at the end of 
September.  This includes additional turnover rent of £25,000 for the Basepoint 
Business Centre which is proving to be very successful.  The full year projection was 
increased by £25,000 in July to reflect this.  In addition to this there is further income 
which has been received for additional rental income at The Redwood Centre totalling 
£31,000.  The full year projection has been amended to reflect this which is showing in 
Appendix A of this report. 

18. The salaries expenditure to the end of September is showing a pressure of £375,000 
against the profiled budget, which is mainly due to agency, consultant, redundancy and 
recruitment costs across the Council, which will be met from Specific Reserves, 
compensating vacancy savings or additional forecast income by year-end.  Therefore, 
by year-end there is a forecast saving of £79,000 as detailed in the Appendix at the 
end of this and the previous Budget Management reports for 2019/20.  This position 
will continue to be monitored closely as we progress through the year. 

19. In summary, based on current information available and as outlined in Appendix A, the 
current forecast year-end position (at the end of September 2019), is an underspend of 
£43,000.  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 16



Miscellaneous 

20. The total remaining in Balance Unallocated of £62,000 has been committed to 
commission three specialist companies to provide support for the first-stage work in 
respect of the Development Consent Order process at Gatwick. This will cover the 
costs of preparing the Council’s response to the Environmental Impact Assessment 
Scoping Work. 

21. It is also proposed that a further £75,000 is transferred from General Reserve to 
supplement a £25,000 Specific Reserve previously set up for Specialist advice at 
Gatwick. This is to meet the cost of ongoing work to support challenges to the details of 
the Development Consent Order, and to seek to secure robust financial contributions 
through S106. Members are requested to approve the transfer of £75,000 to this 
Specific Reserve. 

22. In June, we received £90,000 from GBEB in respect of One Public Estate funding, for 
masterplanning Burgess Hill Station Quarter Project for which the costs are expected to 
cover two financial years. Members are requested to approve the transfer of this sum 
to Specific Reserves to be drawn down as required for this purpose. 

23. In May 2019, grant totalling £17,484 was received from MHCLG in respect of funding 
Local Authority EU Exit preparation.  In September, the Council received a third 
payment of £17,484 and Members are requested to approve the transfer of this sum to 
Specific reserves to meet the cost of preparing for Brexit. 

24. In August the Council received £24,737 from the Cabinet Office to cover additional 
costs due to the Individual Electoral registration (IER) Project in 2019/20.  Members are 
requested to approve the transfer of this sum to Specific reserves for this purpose. 

25. In August 2019, grant totalling £9,225 was received from MHCLG in respect of New 
Burdens Business Rates.  Members are requested to approve the transfer of this sum 
to Specific reserves to meet the costs arising. 

26. In 2013/14, we received the sum of £68,762 in S106 from Crest Nicholson to meet the 
costs arising from St. Francis, Haywards Heath – Anscombe Wood Regeneration. This 
contribution was incorrectly treated as a commuted sum and put to General Reserve in 
error. Members are now requested to approve the transfer of this sum to Specific 
Reserve to finance the wood regeneration undertaken by Mid Sussex in 2019/20. 

 

CAPITAL SPENDING 

Position to the end of September 2019 

27. The Capital Programme for 2019/20 now stands at £4,659,000.  This includes slippage 
from the 2018/19 Capital Programme and current year capital project variations, as 
reported to Cabinet 8 July 2019 and 16 September.  The actual and commitments to 
the end of September 2019 total £3,458,705. 

Variances to the 2019/20 Capital Programme 

28. At this early stage in the year the major variances are set out in table 3 below, the 
remainder being a number of smaller variations totalling less than £100,000. 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 17



29.  

 

Table 3: Expenditure Variations on the 2019/20 Capital Projects 

     
 Variances  Variances  

 £’000  £’000 Notes 

 (Unbudgeted 
/overspends) 

 (underspends)  

Temporary Accommodation 371   1 

Disabled Facility Grants   (723) 2 

Dolphin Leisure Centre Improvements works   (198) 3 

Council Chamber Modernisation   (290) 4 

Oaklands Replacement heating distribution system   (138) 5 

Martlets Hall Demolition and Car Park Extension   (159) 6 

Goddards green Sewage Treatment Works 368   7 

     

     
Total 739  (1,508)  
     
     

 

Notes:  
 
Housing 
(1) Housing purchases to be funded from the Temporary Accommodation Reserve created at Outturn 

2017/18   Refer paragraph 33 in this report for further detail. 

Environmental Health  

(2) Demand-led Housing adaptations service for which a further £387,649 has been committed as at end 
of September. No forecast variation is anticipated at this stage.  

Leisure and Landscapes  
(3) Dolphin Leisure Centre improvement works approved by Cabinet 29 April 19. Works have commenced 

and are on track to be completed in 2019/20.  

Corporate Estates & Facilities   
(4) Council Chamber Modernisation Works – Some value engineering is necessary post tender to reduce 

overall cost.  Now expected to be subject to limited further tender to bring project within budget.  Start 
put back to March 2020. 

(5) Oaklands Replacement heating distribution system - 1st phase of works complete. Further phases to 
follow on from more in-depth feasibility and design work.  budget to slip into 2020/21. Refer paragraph 
32 below. 

(6) Martlets Hall Demolition and Car Park Extension – Works have commenced and are on track to be 
completed by Christmas 2019. 

Planning Policy  
(7) Goddards green Sewage Treatment Works - Mid Sussex acts as Accountable body for a Grant from 

the C2C Local Enterprise Partnership. Any works completed are to be funded from a grant claim in 
2019/20. 

 
Proposed Variations to the Capital Programme 

30. The Deputy Leader authorised the release of £34,190 from the S106 Formal Sport 
Contributions for the Refurbishment works at Sheddingdean Community Centre, 
Burgess Hill under Delegated Member authority as reported and detailed further in MIS 
33 on 14 August 2019.  As the total cost of the works is £44,665, the balance of 
£10,475, not funded from S106, is requested to be met from General Reserve.  The 
Capital Programme has been updated accordingly. 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 18



31. The Current Capital Programme includes £21,000 for Hurst Farm development costs.  
Costs associated with bringing forward this site continue to accrue, mainly for specialist 
consultancy and planning advice. It is expected that the final total of these will exceed 
the budget by some £50,000. The budget will therefore be increased to £71,000, and 
the additional cost will need to be funded from General Reserve.  However, a receipt is 
expected in 2020/21. 

32. The Current Capital Programme includes £140,000 for the Oaklands Replacement 
heating distribution system. The first phase of works is complete and further phases 
are to follow on from more in-depth feasibility and design work.  As a result £138,000 of 
the budget will now slip into 2020/21.  The Capital Programme has been updated 
accordingly. 

33. At Outturn 2017/18 Members agreed to earmark £4m in a Temporary Accommodation 
Reserve to provide up to 20 units of accommodation and 10 leased properties in order 
to secure better, more flexible, housing for vulnerable families and to invest in assets 
with long term value whilst reducing the revenue strain for the Council and improving 
the service.  A number of properties were purchased during last year as reported at 
Outturn 2018/19.  As at the end of September 2019, the Council has purchased 
additional properties as detailed in Table 4 below, all funded from this Reserve.  The 
current Capital Programme has been amended to reflect this. 

34. The current Capital Programme includes £137,000 for the Windows 10 project. This 
project is currently showing an overspend of £89,000. This variance has arisen 
because the original budget was an estimate of hardware costs as the specified 
hardware was not yet within the market at the time of planning. Additionally, there has 
been a higher than planned user base of mobile devices following field testing within 
departments and this has increased hardware refresh costs. Positively, the higher 
uptake will help a more rapid delivery of the long-term efficiency gains expected by the 
adoption of mobile devices, Windows10 and Office365. Additional spend was also 
required to appoint a dedicated external resource to bring the required skills and 
training to accelerate delivery of the project before Windows7 support is removed. This 
will help to realise the project benefits more rapidly. This additional cost can partly be 
financed from two other ICT projects that are now complete and underspent. The 
Storage Area Network (SAN) Replacement project (£65,000) was underspent by 
£13,000 and the Supporting Infrastructure Refresh Project (£30,000) was delivered 
with a saving of £22,000. Therefore, savings on these projects totalling £35,000 will be 
reallocated to offset the additional cost of the Windows 10 project. The unfunded 
balance of £54,000 is requested to be funded from General Reserve. 

35. Enhanced software, costing £28,000 has been purchased from our existing service 
provider to enable a proposed new Council Tax Support Banded Income Scheme 
(CTSS) to be properly administered, if approved after public consultation.  It is 
requested that this project is funded from General Reserve.  The Capital Programme 
has been amended accordingly. 

36. Proposed capital variations are summarised in table 4 below: 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 19



 

 

Table 4: Capital Project Variations April to end September 2019  

   Apr to Sept  

   £’000 Ref 

Sheddingdean Community Centre   44 Para 30 

Hurst Farm Development Costs   50 Para 31 

Oaklands Replacement heating distribution system   (138) Para 32 

Temporary Accommodation   371 Para 33 

Windows 10   89 Para 34 

Storage Area Network (SAN) Replacement   (13) Para 34 

Supporting Infrastructure Refresh    (22) Para 34 

Council Tax Support Banded Income Scheme (CTSS)    28 Para 35 

     
     
Total   409  
     
     
 
 

37. Taking into account the changes detailed above, the overall effect is an increase to the 
current capital programme for 2019/20 of £409,000.  Therefore the revised programme 
total for 2019/20 now stands at £5,068,000.  

Capital receipts and contributions received to the end of September 2019 

38. S106s and grant contributions of £806,335 have been received in the period April to 
September 2019. 

 

S106 contributions committed/utilised to the end of September 2019 

39. The following S106 contributions have been utilised during this period: 

 
40.  

Table 5 S106 utilisation 2019/20  

   Apr to Sept  

   £’000 Note 

Ardingly Parish Council   3 1 

West Sussex County Council   157 2 

East Grinstead Town Council   18 3 

Guinness Housing Association   400 4 

Slaugham Parish Council   175 5 

East Grinstead Rugby Football Club   50 6 

Crawley Down Community Centre Association   25 7 

Hassocks Community Association   9 8 

Haywards Heath Rugby Club   150 9 

West Sussex County Council   486 10 

West Sussex County Council   101 11 

Lindfield Rural Parish Council   7 12 

Lindfield Rural Parish Council   2 13 

     
Total   1,583  
     
     

 
 
Notes 
1 Utilisation of Local Community Infrastructure contribution (PL13-000981) S106 monies to enhance the car 

park provision at Ardingly Recreation Ground, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning on 26 
March 2019 MIS 13 27 March 2019. 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 20



 
2 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contributions (P35/559a £43,833, P35/559b £57,190,P35/650 

£8,687, P35/698 £349, P35/756 £43,893 & PL13-000368 £3,313) S106 monies to carry out various traffic 
management schemes in Handcross, Pease Pottage and Warninglid, as agreed by the Cabinet Member 
for Planning on 4 April 2019 MIS 14a 5 April 2019. 

3 Utilisation of Community Buildings contributions (P35/620a £1200, P35/633b £6,775, P35/671 £2,311 & 
P35/709 £3,545) and Local Community Infrastructure contributions (P35/667 £4,595) S106 monies to 
refurbish the gents toilets at East Court Mansion, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning on 4 
April 2019 MIS 14a 5 April 2019. 

4 Utilisation of Affordable Housing contributions (P35/323 £3,390, P35/563 £200,662, P35/523b £5,000, 
P35/694 £38,663 & PL12-000929 £152,285) S106 monies to enable delivery of affordable housing at 
Blackwell Farm Road, East Grinstead, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Housing & Planning on 11 
April 2019 MIS 16 17 April 2019. 

5 Utilisation of Formal Sport contributions (P35/698a £3,565, PL13-000368 £9,695, PL13-001524 £9,166, 
PL12-001742 £20,256, PL12-002157 £6,630 & PL3-000303 £688), Community Buildings contributions 
(P35/745 £4,704, PL13-000368 £4,211, PL13-001524 £3,982, PL12-001742 £8,799 & PL3-000303 
£58,304) and Playspace contributions (PL13-000368 £8,050, PL13-001524 £7,611 & PL3-000303 
£29,339) S106 monies to upgrade the pavilion and playground at Handcross Recreation Ground, as 
agreed by the Cabinet Grants Panel on 16 April 2019 MIS 16 17 April 2019. 

6 Utilisation of Formal Sport contributions (P35/501c £18,284.92, P35/602e £4,012.30, P35/632b £3,335.04, 
P35/633b £6,204.65 & P35/694 £18,163.09) S106 monies to enable the refit of the junior clubhouse roof 
and terrace, reconfigure the changing rooms and refurbish the outdoor tennis courts to create a 5-aside 
football area, as agreed by the Cabinet Grants Panel on 18 June 2019 MIS 25 21 June 2019. 

7 Utilisation of Community Buildings contributions (P35/717 £2.41, P35/ 728 £0.71, PL12-000170 £1,172, 
PL12-000367 £10,198.71, PL12-000620 £9,440 & PL12-000562 £4,358) S106 monies for improvements 
to the Café Bar, outdoor paving & meeting rooms at the Haven Centre, as agreed by the Cabinet Grants 
Panel on 18 June 2019 MIS 25 21 June 2019. 

8 Utilisation of Community Building contribution (P35/681 £8,650) S106 monies to improve disabled access 
at Adastra Hall, as agreed by the Cabinet Grants Panel on 18 June 2019 MIS 25 21 June 2019. 

9 Utilisation of Formal Sport contributions (P35/688 £37,982.47, P35/ 708 £12,017.53, P35/754 £3,665.61 & 
PL3-001439 £96,334.39) S106 monies for a new clubhouse at Whitemans Green, Cuckfield, as agreed by 
the Cabinet Grants Panel on 18 June 2019 MIS 25 21 June 2019. 

10 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contributions (P35/625a £1,289.30, P35/711 £13,346, P35/781 
£140.04, PL12-000331 £4,528, PL13-Kings Head £7,400, PL13-000560 £3,483, PL13-000869 £20,240, 
PL13-001075 £8,727.35, PL13-000948 £25,223) and Local Community Infrastructure contributions 
(P35/491 £32,584.11, P35/658 £52,425.56,P35/658b £9,173.43, P35/710 £44,915.36, P35/716 
£36,505.15, P35/732 £5,949.02, P35/769 £50,202.11 & £53,560.37, P35/781 £3,545.69, PL12-000331 
£4,325, PL12-000682 £8,075, PL13-Kings Head £7,675, Pl13-000386 £6,975, PL13-000560 £4,311.67, 
P35/711 £4,661, P35/727 £4,811.58, PL12-001772 £29,854.45, PL13-000621 £10,107.76, PL13-000869 
£6722.03, PL13-001075 £8,806.50, PL13-001294 £8,100 &, PL13-000948 £8,105.82) S106 monies to 
facilitate the delivery of projects within the Place & Connectivity Programme, as agreed by the Cabinet 
Grants Panel on 18 June 2019 MIS 25 21 June 2019. 

11 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contributions (P35/554 £40,950, P35/581 £0.79, P35/602e 
£2,450, P35/617 £649, P35/623b £13,802, P35/628b £3,026, P35/637 £10,169, P35/642b £18,251.01, 
P35/664 £2,880, P35/709 £4,912 & PL13-000677 £3,524.20) S106 monies for the installation of a 
pedestrian crossing at Sackville School, East Grinstead, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning in 
July 2019 MIS 28 10 July 2019. 

12 Utilisation of Local Community Infrastructure contribution (PL3-000199 £7,145.56) S106 monies for the 
extension and enhancement of the footpath on Scaynes Hill Common, as agreed by the Cabinet Member 
for Planning on 15 August 2019 MIS 34a 23 August 2019. 

13 Utilisation of Local Community Infrastructure contribution (PL3-000199 £2,225.67) S106 monies to 
purchase an additional Speed Indication Device (SID), as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning in 
September 2019 MIS 37 11 September 2019. 

 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT INTEREST 
 

41. Treasury Management interest for this financial year was projected in the Budget 
Report to be £357,230 at an average rate of 1.15%.  The Budget Report is prepared 
well before many of the cash flow items are known. 

42. As at the end of September 2019, actual Treasury Management interest earnings were 
£145,955 at an average rate of 1.071%.  The estimated year-end projection for 
Treasury Management to be earned in the year is £316,355 being £41,000 under 
target, due to a lower than forecast average balance, due to timing differences between 
budgeted and actual capital receipts anticipated for the year. This position will continue 
to be monitored closely as we progress through the year.   

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 21



Local Authority Property Fund Dividends 

43. For CCLA we have received £129,731 against a budget of £240,000, so it looks likely 
that the full year budget will be exceeded by at least £10,000. This will continue to be 
monitored and further updates will be reported in future Budget Management Reports. 

 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
44. This report shows actual financial performance against the original budget, which was 

approved within the context of the Financial Strategy. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

45. The financial implications are detailed within the body of this report. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

46. There are no risk management implications.  Financial risks have been seen as a 
strategic risk in the past but the Council has a proven track record in Budget 
Management and this is not seen as a strategic risk for 2019/20. 

EQUALITY AND CUSTOMER SERVICE IMPLICATIONS 

47. There are none. 

OTHER MATERIAL IMPLICATIONS 

48. There are no legal implications as a direct consequence of this report. 

Background Papers 

Revenue Budget 2019/20 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 22



 Appendix A 
 

Forecast Budget Variations for 2019/20 at the end of September 2019 
 

 
Pressures 
in 2019/20 

 
Notes 

   

 £’000  
   
April to May pressures Cabinet 16 September 2019 359  

Approved Transfers to Specific Reserve (Cabinet 16th September 19) 457  

Martlets Shopping Centre – supplementary rent 64 1 

Housing Standards Legal costs 12 2 

Building Control Consultants 11 3 

Building Control Income 40 4 

Car Parks NNDR 54 5 

Counsels Fees and Planning Consultants 40 6 

Temporary Accommodation 135 7 
   

   

 1,172  
   

   

   

 
Notes: 
(1) The receipt of supplementary rent is uncertain and is currently being disputed. 

(2) Costs of prosecution in respect of a works in default case. 

(3) Building Control consultant required to cover staff vacancies. 

(4) See paragraph 8. 

(5) An NNDR revaluation was conducted in 2017, for which there has been a period of 
transitional relief, which has now come to an end. 

(6) Additional forecast cost of Counsels fees and Consultants in respect of upcoming Planning 
appeals by Public Inquiry. 

(7) A saving of £135,000 was reported as part of the Corporate Plan and Budget for 2019/20. 
This saving was to be achieved through reducing the number of households in guest 
houses by purchasing our own stock of Temporary Accommodation. However, the rental 
income after allowing for void periods and running costs, split over fewer properties than 
originally planned, has led to a cost neutral position rather than a net surplus from 
operating our own stock. In addition, during this time demand has increased, which means 
that the planned savings through requiring lower use of guest houses has not been 
achieved. 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 23



 Appendix A 

 
Forecast Budget Variations for 2019/20 at the end of September 2019 

 

 
Savings 

in 2019/20 

 
Notes 

   

 £’000  
   

April to May savings Cabinet 16 September 2019 (870) 
 
 

General Property – additional income (31) 8 

Land Charges (13) 9 

NNDR - Oaklands (20) 10 

Environmental Health Staffing (22) 11 

Building Control Staffing (20) 12 

Building Control Car Allowances (5) 13 

Garden Waste Income (45) 14 

A23 Highway Cleansing (10) 15 

Development Management Income (157) 16 

Development Management Staffing (22) 17 

   

   
   

   

 (1,215)  
   

   

   

 
 
Notes: 

 
(8) Refer paragraph 17 above. 

(9) Increased Land Charges income due to a successful marketing campaign, resulting in an 
increased market share of the business. 

(10) Lower than budgeted cost of NNDR for the offices at Oaklands. 

(11) Staff savings resulting from vacant posts. 

(12) Staff savings resulting from vacant posts. 

(13) Car Allowance savings resulting from vacant posts. 

(14) See paragraph 13. 

(15) An annual budget of £20,000 was identified for A23 Highway cleansing as part of 2019/20 
budget process. However, due to issues regarding access to be able to do the work which 
involves road closures, it will not be possible to fully undertake the cleansing work as 
planned. 

(16) See paragraph 7. 

(17) Staff savings resulting from vacant posts. 

  

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 24



 

 Appendix B 

Project justification details 
 

 

Council Tax Support Banded Income Scheme (CTSS) Software 
 
Purpose of project :  
 

To purchase enhanced software from our existing service provider to enable a 
proposed new Council Tax Support Banded Income Scheme (CTSS) to be properly 
administered if approved after public consultation.. 
 
Total Amount : £28,035  
 
Capitalised Salaries included in the project total: Nil 

 
Other sources of  funding:(ie s106/ big lottery etc): None 
 
Revenue Implications:£6,125 per annum annual costs 
 
Value For Money Assessment:  
 
The changes are designed to reduce administration for the Council and the ongoing cost of 
providing the service, whilst producing a simpler, more transparent scheme for the customer in 
response to wider welfare reform, such as the ongoing roll out of Universal Credit (UC).  It will 
also ensure that the Council continues to collect Council Tax in a timely way. 
 
Business Unit/Service: Revenues and Benefits 
 
Head of Service : Peter Stuart 
 
Project Manager: Kevin Stewart 
 
Cabinet Members : Cllr Ruth De Mierre 
 
Ward Members :  All 
 
This project contributes to achieving the Corporate Plan in the following ways:   
Effective and responsive services. We need to ensure we get the right benefit to the right 
person at the right time and people in receipt could be vulnerable so we need to ensure we 
implement the scheme properly. 
 
Summary of discussions with Cabinet Member : The Cabinet Portfolio Holder has been fully 
consulted. 
 
Previous Consideration at Scrutiny Committee : The proposed Council Tax Support Banded 
Income Scheme approved for consultation on 4 September 2019 Scrutiny Committee for 
Leader, Finance and Performance. 
 
Risk Analysis : There are other options that can be considered.  Whilst leaving the scheme as 
it is now is an option, due to the potential number of changes to the people in employment on 
Universal Credit, this may be an unsustainable burden on the Council’s Benefit and Revenues 
Service. 
 
 

 
 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Regeneration of The Orchards Shopping Centre 

 
Purpose of Report 

1. This report makes recommendations to sustain the performance of The Orchards 
Shopping Centre into the future, through appropriate regenerative investment. 

Summary 

2. Officers have worked with several specialist consultancies to explore options to 
maintain the commercial viability of the Orchards into the future. This work 
recommends prioritising a public realm refurbishment programme and also progress a 
leisure study, and then to report back to Cabinet with detailed proposals. 

3. This study will qualify the assumptions made in the feasibility work to date through 
detailed master planning, legal work, financial appraisals, surveys and analysis. This 
will deliver a detailed proposal, including illustrations, costs and a programme of 
works.  This can be financed from the specific reserve created for the purpose.. 

4. In addition to the recommended priority work, we are exploring a series of options to 
enhance the centre, including the possibility of adding a budget supermarket, some 
residential development, and upgrading the car parking.  These projects are 
dependent upon emerging strategies, such as the Parking Strategy, wider 
Masterplanning, and ongoing studies to determine whether the proposals are 
deliverable and there is sufficient interest from third parties to enable terms to be 
agreed. 

5. Cabinet is recommended to: 

i) note the use of the Orchards Specific Reserve to secure the appropriate 
resources and external expertise to progress viability work, in order to create 
options to modernise and improve the centre public realm and also develop a 
detailed leisure proposal. 

 
ii) agree to delegate budgetary responsibility to procure necessary architects and 

consultants, instructing via the Scape Framework, to the Head of Corporate 
Resources. 
 

iii) note that a further report will be presented to Cabinet in due course to set out 
progress and make detailed recommendations for construction works. 

REPORT OF: Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources  
Contact Officer: Simon Moore 

Email: simon.moore@midsussex.gov.uk  Tel: 07834 602279 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision: Yes 
Report to: Cabinet 
 18th November 2019 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 27

Agenda Item 7



Background 

6. In late 2017, the Council acquired The Orchards, for £23.2M, as a commercial 
investment property, with the aim of using the income to support the financial 
resilience of the Council and to help deliver services into the future.  Appendix 1 
provides a plan detailing the extent of the council’s ownership, outlined shaded red 
and a further separate Goad Plan, detailing commercial retail tenants of the centre  

7. The Council was aware at the time of purchase that the Centre was in need of 
investment, to maximise the asset value and to secure long-term growth and 
sustainability.  In anticipation of this need, a £5M Orchards specific reserve was 
approved in the 2017/18 outturn budget management report to Cabinet to update, 
diversify and modernise the Centre.  

8. Owning The Orchards provides the Council with control of a large and prominent town 
centre site that is the major retail destination and also the primary parking provider for 
the town centre.  Consequently, it plays a key role in the attractiveness and 
accessibility of the town centre into the future.   

9. Furthermore, due to its size, The Orchards may be able to accommodate future 
redevelopment, delivering new facilities to the town.  

10. Whilst it is important to separate commercial investment priorities from socio-
economic regeneration, there is an opportunity to deliver shared benefits through 
collaborative working with the Haywards Heath Masterplanning project.  Delivery of a 
consistent, well-connected environment, providing a complimentary interlink between 
The Orchards and the town centre, can provide seamless public realm improvements. 

11.  In addition to boosting the attractiveness and accessibility of the Orchards and town 
centre as a whole, this would support the wider Council policy objectives in the 
Economic Development Strategy, the emerging Haywards Heath Masterplan and the 
Parking Strategy, which are designed to enhance the town centre economy. To 
support this objective, several overarching principles are being agreed within the 
Haywards Heath Masterplan. 

12. The Orchards would benefit from refurbishment, modernisation and broadening the 
range of facilities on offer to sustain viability into the future and lessen the impact of 
the current volatility in the retail market.  This can be achieved by expanding leisure 
and social provision, improving the car parking and upgrading the public realm.  The 
quality of the built environment and attractiveness of the Centre as a destination have 
been cited by MSDC retail consultants as a key in need of improvement, reporting 
that doing nothing to address these points is likely to result in a reducing income and 
falling asset value. 

13. The recommended approach is to invest in the necessary upfront work, employing 
development and commercial expertise in collaboration with the internal Council team 
to undertake a full and detailed review of the scope and assumptions made in the 
initial feasibility work.   

14. This will entail working through viability and undertaking detailed master planning, 
preparing a brief and concept design, consulting with planners, undertaking surveys, 
appraisals, modelling, investigations, impact assessments, legal and planning work, 
in order to develop a detailed proposal, reporting back to Cabinet with 
recommendations. 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 28



15. Two priorities have been identified as follows: -  

Priority Recommendations for Regeneration 

16. The Orchards Shopping Centre retains many original features from its construction in 
the 1980’s.  Consequently it would benefit from refurbishment. 

17. Options could include installing new paving, cladding or rendering walls and wall 
architecture, renewing entrances, removing or replacing canopies and upgrading 
lighting.  Consideration could also be given to re-providing public WCs within the 
Centre. 

18. Refurbishment could have an immediate and notable impact upon the centre, 
improving the public realm, which will both positively increase visitors’ perception of 
the town centre and its appeal.  This will support the Council strategic policy 
objectives to promote the town centre economy, its vitality and vibrancy. 

19. Secondly, specialist consultancy appraisals have suggested that a market exists for a 
leisure and entertainment facility within The Orchards.  This is a well-documented 
shopping centre strategy to enhance the offering, providing a complementary mix of 
uses to attract visitors.  

20. Work undertaken to-date will need to be built upon to confirm viability and establish 
whether there is sufficient interest in the market.  

21. This provides an opportunity to deliver a new leisure and entertainment facility to the 
town centre benefitting residents and supporting Council policy objectives in the 
Economic Development Strategy and emerging Haywards Heath Masterplan, to 
enhance the town centre vibrancy, sustainability and economy. 

22. A new leisure and entertainment facility would also diversify the Orchards, promoting 
footfall and extending the hours of operation improving sustainability and the range of 
facilities available to residents. 

Other Options Being Progressed 

23. Officers continue to proactively explore various options to enhance the centre, for 
which a budget supermarket, residential development and enhanced parking are 
being considered.  These options are not currently deliverable and will be the subject 
of future reports, if applicable.  

  

Procurement 

24. Officers have worked with the Shared Procurement Service (Crawley, Horsham and 
Mid Sussex Councils) to identify options for an appropriate and robust procurement 
route for the delivery of The Orchards improvements. 

25. Given the overall potential value and because the programme will be procuring over a 
significant length of time, officers assessed an appropriate procurement approach to 
ensure the following is achieved: 

 OJEU compliance; 

 Efficient procurement without compromise on quality; 

 Accountability; 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 29



 Value for money; 

 Social value; 

 Ability to use local suppliers/ supply chains; 

 Good client support with demonstrable experience of delivery. 

26. It is recommended that the procurement of civil and associated works is made using a 
multi-disciplinary contract via the ‘Scape’ Procurement Framework. 

27. The Scape Group is a public sector partnership that offers fully managed frameworks 
available to any public body.  This Council has an extant access agreement for the 
Framework, and for this work would use the Built Environment Consultancy Services 
Framework, The National Construction Framework or The Minor Works Framework  

28. The Scape Procure Framework provides: 

 An efficient approach to procurement with an immediate route to market 
demonstrating value for money; 

 Compliance with UK and EU Regulations; 

 Both a dedicated Framework Manager and Relationship Manager  
 

29. The SCAPE framework requires contractors to deliver a 50% Social Value 
contribution. They are required to demonstrate a pre-established supply chain or 
secure supply through local companies within a client specified radius of the works 
location.  

30. This approach allows early Contractor engagement with the project, including the 
provision of outline feasibility at no cost to the Council, and facilitates a collaborative 
design process, allowing input from all stakeholders including the Contractor. 

31. The procurement stage deliverables are: 

 Clear programme documentation, 

 A resourced and capable contractor with clear client side management, 

 Clear management structures with resource to deliver the scope of the 
programme; and appointed contractor(s) to deliver the requirements within the 
required timescales. 

 

Governance and Risk Management 

32. Procuring via the Scape Framework significantly reduces the risk of overspend by 
ensuring that a very efficient and effective means of procurement is adopted to 
facilitate the delivery of projects within the tight delivery timeframes.  

33. The Scape Framework is performance and support managed to facilitate 
transparency, and includes regular reporting to the client side to ensure any issues 
can be effectively reported and managed. 

34. Officers will be provided with regular updates as work progresses with a future report 
to Cabinet making detailed recommendations.  

 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 30



Policy Context 

35. Modernisation and diversification will deliver clear benefits to the locality, supporting 
strategic Council objectives, including the Economic Development Strategy and 
Haywards Heath Master Plan, which strive to deliver growth by providing the right 
environment for business.  The Economic Development Strategy sets out a vision for 
the District as a vibrant and attractive place for businesses and people to grow and 
succeed.  One of the key outcomes set out in the Strategy’s five- year action plan is 
to deliver “viable and vibrant town and village centres with their own identity which 
meet the retail, leisure and employment needs of the growing population” and to 
“enhance the quality of life for local residents and improve the centres’ vitality and 
viability”. The Mid Sussex Economic Profile 2018 refers to increasing leisure provision 
and town centre accessibility to promote the health of the town centre.  

36. The Orchards is an important site for town centre accessibility, providing 224 parking 
spaces across two surface car parks.  Decisions regarding the future development of 
The Orchards will work with the emerging parking strategy to support the delivery of a 
longer term parking for the town centre. 

Financial Implications 

37. The costs for working up these proposals can be fully met from the Orchards Specific 
Reserve. 

38. Approval to procure further consultancy and scoping does not commit the Council to 
expenditure beyond the proposed budget. 

39. The Council is able to assess suppliers against the budget via the Scape Framework 
and is able to cease procurement if the market is unable to supply within budget. 

Risk Management Implications 

40. Risk for the project is managed through the programme arrangements for the Project 
Board and Project Manager. 

41. The progression of elements of the proposals will be dependent upon a number of 
delivery factors including reaching agreement with external parties in some instances, 
planning, highways and legal consents.  The scope and timing of proposals will also 
to some degree be led by external parties, including tenants and lead-in time for 
contractors, which can be qualified when the scope of any works has been 
determined.  

Equality and Customer Service Implications  

42. Equality issues will be considered through the development of proposals including 
provision of Changing Places facilities within the programme, if appropriate.  

Other Material Implications 

43. None 

 

 
 

 

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 31



This page is intentionally left blank



The Orchards Shopping Centre
S. Durber

17/09/2019Date:

Author:

Scale: 1:2500

Mid Sussex District Council

© Crown copyright and database right. All rights reserved (100021794) 2019

A
PPEN

D
IX 1a

C
abinet - 18 N

ovem
ber 2019

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



For more information on our products and services:
www.experian.co.uk/goad | goad.sales@uk.experian.com | 0845 601

6011

50 metres

Haywards Heath

Experian Goad Plan Created: 04/09/2019
Created By: GCW

Copyright and confidentiality Experian, 2019. © Crown
copyright and database rights 2019. OS 100019885

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

APPENDIX 1b

Cabinet - 18 November 2019 35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 October 2019.
	5 Ansty Village Centre Trust.
	6 Budget Management 2019/20 - Half Year Progress Report.
	7 Regeneration of The Orchards Shopping Centre.
	Appendix 1a - Orchards Council Ownership
	Appendix 1b - Orchards Occupiers Plan


